



**GOGO INC.**  
**CHARTER OF THE MILITARY AND  
GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE**  
Adopted April 28, 2026

**I. Purposes**

a. The Board of Directors (the “**Board**”) of Gogo Inc. (the “**Company**”), pursuant to the Company’s amended and restated bylaws (the “**Bylaws**”), as the same may be amended from time to time, has determined that the Military and Government Committee of the Board shall assist the Board in fulfilling certain of the Board’s oversight responsibilities. The Board has adopted this Military and Government Committee Charter (this “**Charter**”) to establish the governing principles of the Military and Government Committee (the “**Committee**”).

b. The Committee provides an objective perspective in assisting the Board by overseeing and providing guidance with respect to government security and related governance matters consistent with applicable law, ethics, and Company policy.

**II. Composition**

a. The number of individuals serving on the Committee shall be fixed by the Board from time to time but shall be composed of no fewer than one director, whom will be an “independent director” as required by the rules of The NASDAQ Stock Market (“Nasdaq”) and the SEC and the following officers of the Company: the Chief Executive Officer and the General Counsel. Individuals serving on the Committee shall be required to retain the requisite security clearances necessary to review and access classified information to the extent necessary. The members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board, subject to annual reconfirmation, and shall serve until such member’s successor is duly elected and qualified or until such member’s earlier resignation or removal. The members of the Committee may be removed, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Board. The Committee shall have the authority to establish subcommittees and to delegate any of its responsibilities to such subcommittees as the Committee may deem appropriate, provided the subcommittees are composed entirely of directors satisfying the foregoing independence standards.

b. Unless a Chair of the Committee is elected by the full Board or there is only one independent director on the Committee, the members of the Committee shall designate a Chair by majority vote of the full Committee. The Chair will chair all regular sessions of the committee and will, with input from other members of the Committee, and where appropriate, management, set the agenda for the Committee meetings.

**III. Meetings and Operations**

a. The Committee shall meet at least annually and additionally as circumstances dictate. Meetings of the Committee shall be at such times and places as determined by the Committee Chair and may be held in person, telephonically or virtually or a hybrid thereof, or by written consent. Briefing materials will be provided to the Committee as far in advance of meetings as is practicable. A majority of the members present shall constitute a quorum, and a majority of the



members present shall decide on any matter brought before the Committee. All non-management members of the Board who are not members of the Committee may attend meetings of the Committee but may not vote. The Committee may invite to its meetings any management or other personnel of the Company, or any third parties, as it deems appropriate in order to carry out its responsibilities. When desirable, the Committee shall meet in executive session outside of the presence of any non-Committee member. In the event the number of Committee members voting in favor of a proposal and the number of Committee members voting against such proposal are equal, the proposal shall be submitted to a vote of the Board, subject to applicable law and rules of the SEC and Nasdaq.

b. As provided in this Charter, the Company's Bylaws or as required by law or regulation the Committee shall set its own rules of procedure. Minutes shall be kept at each meeting of the Committee.

c. The Committee will have the sole authority, without further approval by the Board, to select, retain, and terminate, as it deems necessary or advisable, one or more advisors it deems necessary or advisable to assist the Committee in carrying out its duties. The Company shall provide appropriate funding, as determined by the Committee in its sole authority, for payment of compensation to such advisors and for payment of ordinary administrative expenses of the Committee that are necessary or appropriate in carrying out its duties. The Committee shall be given full access to the Company's management and personnel as necessary to carry out these responsibilities. While acting within the scope of its stated purpose, the Committee shall have the authority of the Board.

#### **IV. Responsibilities and Duties**

The Committee's duties and responsibilities shall include the matters enumerated below, as well as such other matters as may be delegated to the Committee by the Board from time to time:

a. The Committee will oversee the establishment, maintenance and effectiveness of Company policies, procedures and controls for safeguarding classified information and export-controlled technical data including compliance with National Industrial Security Program Operating Manual (32 CFR Part 117) or any program-specific security requirements, and for preventing unauthorized disclosure of such information, which oversight shall include, but not be limited to, reviewing (A) the Company policies, procedures and controls; (B) any self-inspections, third party assessments, risk management and corrective action plans of the foregoing and (C) security clearances to access classified information.

b. In cooperation, the Audit Committee of the Board, the Committee will oversee the Company's protection of Controlled Unclassified Information and compliance with applicable DoD cybersecurity requirements, including DFARS 252.204-7012, NIST SP 800-171 and Cybersecurity Maturity Model Certification and any other cybersecurity or compliance requirements pertaining to the military and government business, and will review assessment status, plans of action and milestones and reporting processes for cyber incidents and other security events related thereto.



c. The Committee will oversee the Company's export-control compliance program under the International Traffic in Arms Regulations and Export Administration Regulations, including registrations, licensing practices, jurisdiction and classification processes, recordkeeping, screening protocols, and technology control plans (including, where applicable, electronic control plans and system security plans).

d. The Committee will oversee the Company's global government affairs activities, and the manner in which the Company conducts its global government affairs activities including the Company's U.S. initiatives via its Political Action Committee or any other similar efforts.

e. The Committee will advise on management's identification, assessment and mitigation of Foreign Ownership, Control or Influence (FOCI) risk, and review any proposed transactions, governance changes or other events that could reasonably be expected to affect the Company's facility or personnel clearances or military and/or government contracts.

f. The Committee will evaluate and advise on (A) global security, political, budgetary, regulatory and other issues and trends that could affect the Company's military and government business activities and performance, (B) potential new defense and national security markets for the Company and its products, as well as the risks and timing associated with those markets; (C) issues in existing or emerging legislation that could impact the Company's business and advise on strategies to address such issues; and (D) capture strategies for existing or anticipated contract competitions when requested by management.

g. The Committee will periodically review and assess the Company's operations, policies, programs, initiatives, reporting and strategy regarding military and government issues including the development and conduct of employee training regarding classified information, export controls and other matters that could reasonably be expected to affect the Company's facility or personnel clearances.

h. The Committee will report regularly to the Board on all matters charged to the responsibility of the Committee, and the Board shall approve such report. The report to the Board may be in writing, by submission of Committee minutes and consents or take the form of an oral report by the Chair of the Committee or any other member of the Committee designated by the Committee to make this report.

i. The Committee will exercise such other powers and perform such other duties and responsibilities as are incidental to the purposes, duties and responsibilities specified herein and as may from time to time be delegated to the Committee by the Board.

## **V. Annual Performance Evaluation**

a. The Committee shall perform a review and evaluation, periodically, of its performance and its members, including reviewing the compliance of the Committee with this Charter. In addition, the Committee shall review and reassess, periodically, the adequacy of this Charter and recommend to the Board any improvements to this Charter that the Committee considers necessary or valuable.